
























OPCW 
Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons Director-General 

The Hague, 9 December 2020 
L/ODG/224853/20 

~e. c..r _p..-,.,..\," s-r .-. lo r I 

~eo.r ~ C.'1<'-'-~.c..-­
Excellency, __j../ 

I refer to your letter of 4 December 2020 related to the request made by the Russian 
Federation to the OPCW Secretariat to conduct a technical assistance visit to the Russian 
Federation under Article VIII(38)(e) of the Chemical Weapons Convention. 

1. I recall that Article VIII(50) requires that the privileges and immunities of the OPCW be 
defined in agreements between the OPCW and States Pa1iies for all the activities 
undertaken by the OPCW on the territory of a State Paiiy, except for those contemplated 
under the Verification Annex. 

In this connection, I wish to recall that the prov1s1ons of the Verification Annex 
concerning privileges and immunities bind the Member States from the date of their 
accession to the Convention, and are exclusively related to the inspections of the 
chemical industry and destruction of chemical weapons. These privileges and immnuties 
do not apply to technical assistance visits. 

In this vein, the United Kingdom concluded a comprehensive privileges and immunities 
agreement pursuant to Article VIII(50) prior to the technical assistance visits to the 
United Kingdom in 2018 related to the Salisbury and Amesbury incidents. 

Similarly, Ge1many entered into an ad hoe privileges and immunities agreement with the 
OPCW for the purpose of the technical assistance visit last September. 

Consequently and in order to undertake the technical assistance visit to the Russian 
Federation, the Secretariat has requested that the Russian Federation enter into an ad hoe 
agreement on privileges and immunities with the Organisation. In this regard, the 
Secretariat has not yet received a response to its communication dated 16 November 
2020 regarding the conclusion of a Memorandum of Understanding that would cover the 
necessary privileges and immunities in relation to the requested visit. 

The Secretariat, therefore, looks forward to receiving your response to the Secretariat's 
above communication on this outstanding issue. 

2. The Secretariat underlines that Mr Navalny's consent to grant the OPCW access to his 
medical records and information, including biomedical samples, is based on a principle • 

I, 

widely recognised by international organisations, including the World Health'\. 

• • • 
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The need for a individual's consent is also reflected in a decision of the Conference of 

the States Parties of the OPCW (C-I/DEC.47, dated 16 May 1997). 

Moreover, the need to obtain such consent is also provided for under the internal rules of 
the Organisation, which have been established a long time ago and consistently applied 
by the Secretariat when undertaking its activities. 

Accordingly, the same rules have been consistently adhered to when preparing for and 

undertaking technical assistance visits pursuant to a request by a State Party. 

For instance, Mr Navalny's consent was obtained in relation to the technical assistance to 
Germany at the beginning of September. 

3. The Secretariat welcomes your assurance that the anival of the OPCW mission members 
will remain confidential. It understands from your letter that such confidentiality shall 

continue for the full duration of the mission and that there will be no media presence 
during the visit of the OPCW team. 

4. With regard to the request for a "joint study" of biomedical samples at the Laboratory 

refened to in your letter under the Russian Federal Medical and Biological Agency 
(Saint Peters burg), such an activity falls outside the scope of existing procedures, and has 
not been conducted during any previous OPCW visit pursuant to a request for technical 
assistance. 

In connection with the technical assistance visits conducted in the United Kingdom and 
Germany, the Secretariat neither jointly studied, nor co-analysed samples on site with the 
States Parties in question. 

In these instances and as per the established rules, the Secretariat collected samples and 
sent them to designated laboratories for analysis, in order to guarantee the independence 
of the activities conducted and to respect the confidentiality related to the analysis of 
samples. 

The Secretariat is thus applying the same approach to the United Kingdom, Germany, 
and the Russian Federation. 

In that regard, the Secretariat emphasises its readiness to receive samples from the 
Russian Federation, which it will instantly dispatch to the OPCW designated laboratories 
for analysis. 

5. In addition, the Secretariat stands ready to receive all relevant information, transcripts,\ 
recordings, documentation, testimonies, and sample analyses related to the incident 
involving Mr Navalny on the tenitory of the Russian Federation. 

6. Finally, in line with your request, the Secretariat will publish this conespondence on the t. 
i.. 

provision of technical assistance to the Russian Federation under Article VIII(3 8)( e) on t 
the website of the OPCW. 

. · / 



7. During our telephone conversation on 4 December 2020, you outlined that the Secretariat 
should provide a response to your letter as soon as possible, and that the visit should take 
place no later than 11 December 2020. This letter gives me the opportunity to reiterate 

the readiness of the Secretariat to deploy experts to the Russian Federation immediately, 
provided that the Russian Federation meets the above mentioned requirements. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest consideration. 

\'1J \. "'] -1 ,.r\-I '.::'.:> ~ r ~ s~==--r. t :.-~ 
er a~Arias 

----











 

PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE  
OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION 

TO THE ORGANISATION FOR THE PROHIBITION 
OF CHEMICAL WEAPONS 

 

No. 80 

The Hague, “   4   ” December 2020 

 

Your Excellency,  

Thank you for your most recent letter (L/ODG/224741/20, dated 

27 November 2020) in response to my repeated appeal to work out an 

algorithm for the provision of technical assistance to the Russian Federation 

under paragraph 38(e), Article VIII of the Chemical Weapons Convention 

(hereinafter, “the Convention”) concerning the situation with A. Navalny. 

It is with regret that I am forced to state again that the management of the 

OPCW Technical Secretariat has not provided a meaningful response to our 

initial proposal on the modalities of the visit of OPCW experts to the Russian 

Federation.  

Most notably, this concerns the considerations that we proposed on 

conducting a joint study of the remaining amounts of the biomaterials collected 

from A. Navalny at Laboratory 62 of the Scientific Research Institute for 

Hygiene, Occupational Pathology, and Human Ecology under the Russian 

Federal Medical and Biological Agency (Saint Petersburg), while using for 

these purposes specialised equipment and reagents delivered to Russia by 

OPCW representatives. This aspect is of key importance to us 
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as the Federal Republic of Germany, France, and Sweden refuse to provide 

information that would make it possible to resolve the situation that has 

developed.  

The key question remains the same: where, when, and under what 

circumstances did the chemical—which was detected outside the borders of 

the Russian Federation—appear in the biological samples of the Russian 

citizen. This information is crucial for determining the signs of a potential 

element of a crime, which could serve as the basis upon which Russian 

investigatory bodies could open a criminal case in line with Russian 

legislation. We presume that the results thereof could bring to light a scenario 

of what took place different from the one that a known group of countries is 

trying to insist upon, whilst being governed by goals and approaches that have 

nothing to do with generally recognised norms or the letter and spirit of the 

Convention.  

I again inform you that in line with Article 144 of the Criminal Procedural 

Code of the Russian Federation, an investigative body is authorised to conduct 

the requisite proceedings to carry out the appropriate measures even without 

the consent to do so from A. Navalny himself.  

In this regard, I note a certain contradiction in the position set out in your 

letter dated 27 November 2020 where, on the one hand, the consent of 

A. Navanly allowing Organisation staff to access his biomedical data is 

qualified as an imperative for our continued cooperation with the OPCW, 

while on the other hand, we are being required to provide this type of access 

to all relevant information, correspondence, documentation, and results of 

sample analyses conducted within the territory of the Russian Federation. 
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It is once again with regret that I bring attention to the fact that the 

approach of the OPCW Technical Secretariat to collaboration with us is in 

sharp contrast to the great eagerness to cooperate that you previously 

demonstrated when providing technical assistance to Great Britain, Malaysia, 

and the Federal Republic of Germany. The perception of the Russian 

Federation as a de facto violator of the Convention is absolutely unacceptable. 

We categorically reject such a portrayal of the situation. 

With regard to ensuring the confidentiality of the arrival of OPCW 

representatives in the Russian Federation, you can fully rest assured on that 

matter, as the interests of pre-investigatory measures require exactly that 

approach under Russian law. This is also a required condition to ensure that 

the truth prevails in the end. 

You should not, distinguished Director-General, have any doubts with 

regard to the Russian side’s compliance with the privileges and immunities of 

the staff of the Technical Secretariat. They have visited our country over the 

course of many years for inspections during the implementation of the national 

programme to destroy chemical weapons stockpiles in the Russian Federation, 

which—in spite of serious financial and technological challenges—was 

completed early. Your experts continue to inspect chemical industry facilities 

in our country to this day. 

I am very much counting on a substantive response to our proposals as set 

out in the memorandum dated 16 October 2020, and my letter dated 

11 November 2020. For now, it must be said that the contents of your 

responses have not provided an opportunity to make constructive progress. 
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I confirm my consent to publish our correspondence on the provision of 

technical assistance to the Russian Federation under paragraph 38(e), 

Article VIII of the Convention on the Organisation’s website. 

Your Excellency, please accept the assurances of my highest 

consideration. 

 

[signature] 

Alexander SHULGIN 

 

 



OPCW 
Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

The Hague, 27 November 2020 
L/ODG/224741/20 

Subject: Request for a Technical Assistance Visit to the Russian Federation 

~~ .._ ,...-· }-:.: ,_~..._.JI-~",,- I 

Excellency, .. -.-- \p,-,::-\. l 
.- "t.;,c-- ~-e_,,- I 

Director-General 

I received your letter dated 25 November 2020 and read it with attention. Since your request in 
October for the Technical Secretariat (Secretariat) of the Organisation for the Prohibition of 
Chemical Weapons (OPCW) to deploy experts to the Russian Federation in order to conduct a 
technical assistance visit under Article VIII(38)(e) of the Chemical Weapons Convention (CWC 
or Convention), the Secretariat has diligently engaged with the Russian Federation regarding the 
necessary arrangements for such a visit. 

As requested in my letters dated 18 November and 26 October 2020, and during consultations 
with your staff, the following matters remain to be resolved: 

consent of Mr. Navalny to grant the OPCW access to his medical records and information, 
including biomedical samples, pursuant to the established procedure that the Secretariat 
applies when it is carrying out any activities involving individual privacy rights; 

assurances of confidentiality and no media presence during the mission; 

agreement from the Russian Federation to the Memorandum of Understanding on the 
necessary privileges and immunities in relation to the requested technical assistance visit; 
and 

access to relevant information, transcripts, recordings, documentation, testimonies, and 
sample analyses related to the incident involving Mr Navalny on the territory of the 
Russian Federation. 

The Secretariat reiterates that sharing the content of the report of the technical assistance visit 
performed by the Secretariat in Germany remains the prerogative of the German Government as 
the assisted State Party. For that matter, the Secretariat recalls that Germany invited the 
Secretariat to work with the Russian Federation on the version of the report that was circulated 
through the Secretariat to all States Parties. 

The system of designated laboratories has been set up by the OPCW in order to ensure the 
highest standards of independence and quality of sample analysis. In this respect, the Secretariat 
reiterates that it will immediately dispatch any samples it receives from the Russian Federation 
for analysis by designated laboratories, in accordance with the rules of the Organisation. 

The Secretariat maintains its readiness to continue its close cooperation with the Russian 
Federation and to deploy under the relevant provisions of the Convention, without delay, once 
the aforementioned matters have been resolved. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest consideration. 

~: \-\._ .._ / ~ c. /,t- r ,.__ ,...J._ r 

~~=:~Arias 

H.E. Mr Alexander Vasilievich Shul;n-~, . ~c•• 

Ambassador and Permanent Representative ofthri.ussian Federation to the OPCW 
Andries Bickerweg 2 
2517 JP The Hague 

0 PCW Johan de Wittlaan 32 2517 JR The Hague Netherlands fernando.arias@opcw.org 







PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE 
OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION 

TO THE ORGANISATION FOR THE 
PROHIBITION 

OF CHEMICAL WEAPONS 

Your Excellency, Dear Fernando, 

No. 73 

The Hague, "_12_" November 2020 

With regard to your response to my letter dated 11 November 2020, I do 

regret that I am forced to once again state that the Technical Secretariat of the 

Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons (OPCW), likely at the 

behest of a number of States with anti-Russian leanings, aims to politicise as 

much as possible the conditions under which technical assistance can be 

provided to the Russian Federation in line with paragraph 38(e) of Article 

VIII of the Chemical Weapons Convention. This approach strongly differs 

from the precedents of the provision of assistance in response to similar 

requests from the United Kingdom, Malaysia, and the Federal Republic of 

Germany. 

In this case, the clear mind-set of your position 1s perceived to 

undermine this mission under false pretences, emphasising in particular the 

wholly predictable refusal by the Russian blogger A. Navalny to give 

permission to discuss his clinical record, chronic disease, and to authorise a 

joint analysis by Russian experts and OPCW experts of the biological 

samples collected from him in Omsk. 

I avail myself of this opportunity to inform you that, in line with 

Article 144 of the Criminal Procedural Code of the Russian 

H.E FERNANDO ARIAS 
DIRECTOR GENERAL 
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Federation, an investigative body is authorised to conduct the requisite 

proceedings to carry out the measures listed above, including without the 

consent to do so from A. Navalny himself. 

In light of the above and the fact that three months have already passed 

since the incident, the relevance of assistance from the OPCW Technical 

Secretariat is now not so clear. A subjective approach to the implementation 

of the provisions in paragraph 3 8( e) of Article VIII of the Convention with 

regard to the request from the Russian Federation convinces us yet again that 

this story, which has obviously been orchestrated, and not without outside 

interference, retains many blind spots, ambiguities, inconsistencies, and 

discrepancies. Regarding the question as to which chemicals were identified 

in A. Navalny' s biomaterial and at which stage of his very prompt transfer to 

Germany they appeared, answers need to be searched for, and probably not 

only through collaboration among law enforcement agencies, but also within 

the framework of cooperation between the special services through existing 

partnership channels. 

We will continue to insist on substantive responses to all of our 

numerous requests to the Federal Republic of Germany, France, and Sweden, 

as well as the OPCW Technical Secretariat in carrying out the obligations of 

the European Convention on Mutual Assistance in Criminal Matters of 1959 

and paragraph 2 of Article VII of the Convention (legal assistance). 

I also confirm my consent for your proposal regarding the publication of 

our correspondence on this matter, including this letter. 

Your Excellency, please accept the assurances of my highest 

consideration and readiness to continue close cooperation. 

[signature] 

Alexander SHULGIN 



OPCW 
Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

The Hague, 18 November 2020 
L/ODG/224609/20 

Excellency'\.~ (: IA ( -A 11,\ C..] J v..! ,> r I 

Director-Gcnernl 

I refer to your letter of 11 November 2020 in relation to the Russian Federation's request that the 

Technical Secretariat (Secretariat) of the Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

(OPCW or Organisation) deploy experts to the Russian Federation in order to conduct a technical 

assistance visit under A1ticle VIII(38)(e) of the Chemical Weapons Convention (CWC or 

Convention). 

At the outset, I want to reiterate the Secretariat's availability to conduct the requested visit under 

the CWC, relevant decisions of the policy-making organs, and applicable Secretariat procedures. 

The Secretariat awaits the Russian Federation's responses to the pending matters outlined in my 

letter of 26 October, including our request for no media presence during the mission, assurances of 

confidentiality during the mission, and written confirmation that the Secretariat is authorised under 

domestic Russian law and by Mr Navalny to be granted access to his medical records and 

information. I also take this opportunity to reiterate that the German Government is not in a 

position to authorise the Secretariat to share with the Russian Federation the full report of the 

technical assistance visit performed in Germany. It invited the Secretariat to refer to the version of 

the report that was circulated through the Secretariat. 

The system of designated laboratories has been set up by the OPCW in order to ensure the 

independence and quality of sample analysis needed by the States Patties to the Convention. 

Toward this end, the Secretariat reiterates that it will immediately dispatch any samples it receives 

from the Russian Federation for analysis by designated laboratories, in accordanc.e with the CWC, 

relevant decisions of the policy-making organs, and applicable Secretariat procedures. 

I also look forward to finalising the necessary privileges and immunities agreement with the 

Russian Federation in relation to the requested technical assistance visit. 

Finally, I note that the present letter is a continuation of the discussion between the Secretariat and 

the Russian Federation pe1taining to the letter that you handed to me during the sitting of the 
Executive Council on 6 October 2020. 

I also note that the Russian Federation has requested that correspondence on this matter be 

circulated to all States Parties. 

On this basis, and in order to carry on the Russian Federation's spirit of transparency, I would 
request, once again, that the Russian Federation let us know if it objects to the Secretariat sharing 

with all States Paities the communications from the Russian Federation. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest cons1 erat' o, ~ r~: ::::::-~ 
"' ,.,,,,,J·~''' 

Fernancl~ Arias 
/' 

H.E. Mr Alexander Vasilievich Shulgin ~ 
Ambassador and Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the OPCW 
Andries Bickerweg 2 
-25..1-7-JP-T-heJ:Iagu..,__ __________________ _ 
OPCW Johnn de Witllnan .11 2517 JR Th~ Hague Ncthcrlnnds lernamln.arins@opm.org 









IlOCTOJIHI-ThIHIIPE~CTABHTEAb 
POCCIIHCKOH <I> E~EP AI.J)'IH 

11PM OPr AIDI3AI.J)'IH no 3AIIPEIIJ;EHHIO 
XHMJilIECKoro OPY)KHJI 

PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE 
OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION 

TO THE ORGANISATION FOR THE PROHIBITION 
OF CHEMICAL WEAPONS 

Excellency, 

Unofficial translation from Russian 

/1/'EJl 
The Hague," 7/,, November 2020 

Let me thank you for your prompt reaction (L/ODG/224391/20 

dated October 26, 2020) to the Russian aide-memoire about the 

Technical Assistance Visit (TA V) under A1iicle VIII (3 8) ( e) of the 

CWC. At the same time we are surprised by the free and broad 

interpretation by the Technical Secretariat (Secretariat) of the 

Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons (OPCW) of the 

Russian proposals in the context of technical modalities for the 

Mission. We proceed from the fact that all the parameters of a TA V 

are to be determined exclusively by a requesting side, as it was, in 

particular, in cases of Malaysia, the UK and Germany. 

I would like to assure you that the Russian Federation is 

interested in launching the practical cooperation with the OPCW 

experts and kindly expects the Secretariat to promptly agree to the 

H.E. MR FERNANDO ARIAS 
DIRECTOR-GENERAL 

OF THE TECHNICAL SECRETARIAT OF THE OPCW 
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proposed parameters of the TA V that were presented earlier as 

follows. 

1. The experts of the Secretariat are welcome to Moscow for 

consultations and taking appropriate measures with regard to the 

"poisoning" of A.Navalny that is being declared by some Western 

countries. 

2 During the visit we intend to examine and discuss with the 

OPCW experts the results of the analysis of the biomedical samples of 

A.Navalny collected by Russian specialists in the course of providing 

him the first aid in Omsk. 

3. We also plan to discuss the results of the analysis of the 

biomedical samples of A.Navalny collected by the OPCW team at 

"Charite Hospital" in Berlin and then analyzed by the OPCW 

designated laboratories (document S/1906/2020 dated 6 October 

2020), which demonstrate that "A.Navalny was exposed to a toxic 

chemical acting as a cholinesterase inhibitor. The biomarkers of the 

cholinesterase inhibitor found in Mr Navalny's blood and urine 

samples have similar structural characteristics as the toxic chemicals 

belonging to schedules l .A.14 and l .A.15 that were added to the 

Annex on Chemicals to the Convention during the 24th session of the 

Conference of the States Paiiies in November 2019. This 

cholinesterase inhibitor is not listed in the Annex on Chemicals to the 

Convention." 

4. Upon completion of consultations in Moscow, the OPCW 

experts are invited to jointly study with Russian specialists the 

remaining volumes ofbiomaterials collected from A.Navalny in Omsk 

at the OPCW-certified "62nd Laboratory of Chemical Analytical 

Control and Biotesting, Research Institute of Hygiene, Occupational 

Pathology and Human Ecology (RIHOPHE)" of the Federal Medical­

Biological Agency of Russia (Saint-Petersburg) using the specialized 
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equipment and reagents delivered to Russia by representatives of the 

Secretariat (similar to those used in two other designated OPCW 

laboratories for the analysis of samples previously taken from 

A.Navalny at the "Charite Hospital"). 

5. The results of consultations in Moscow are intended to assist 

the Russian law enforcement agencies in establishing any possible 

evidence of a crime ( corpus delicti) on the territory of the Russian 

Federation. 

We also hope for a prompt consideration by the Secretariat of 

the Russian proposals regarding the content of a bilateral 

Memorandum of Understanding with regards to the TA V, which is 

provided for signature. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest 

consideration. 

Alexander SHULGIN 



OPCW 
Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

The Hague, 26 October 2020 
L/ODG/224391/20 

Director-General 

I refer to the aide-memoire presented by the Russian Federation to the Technical Secretariat 

(Secretariat) of the Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons (OPCW or 
Organisation) during the meeting that took place at the OPCW on Friday, 16 October. This 

letter responds, in a structured manner, to the points set out in the aide-memoire, and to the 
questions orally raised by the Russian Federation during the meeting in relation to the 

privileges and immunities applicable to the Secretariat in the Russian Federation. 

1. As communicated to you in my letter of 2 October, the Secretariat stands ready to 
provide assistance to the Russian Federation under Article VIII (38)(e) of the 
Chemical Weapons Convention (Convention). To expedite the issuance of visas, the 
composition of the team will be shared with you as soon as the parameters and the 
scope of the visit have been finalised. 

2. This visit is of a technical nature. For the protection of the privacy and identity of 
experts involved in the mission, the Secretariat requests that there be no media 
presence. 

3. The composition of the team is and shall remain confidential. Other details of the 
technical assistance visit, including the dates, location, and duration of the visit will 
have to remain confidential at least until after the mission is completed. After 
completion of the visit, the communication of information related to it will be the 
decision of the Russian Federation authorities. 

4. In order to most efficiently conduct this technical assistance visit, the Secretariat 
would like to suggest that the Russian Federation collate all elements related to the 
samples it collected from Mr. Navalny, those analysed by the Russian Federation, in 
which Russian experts did not find any traces of nerve agents, as well as the 
remaining volumes of biomaterials which may be used for analysis. Such elements 
would include information on the medical condition of Mr. Navalny and on the 
treatment he received. 

5. The Secretariat also stands ready to receive transcripts of and to interview, in person 
or remotely, medical experts who treated Mr. Navalny, and experts who analysed the 
samples taken by the Russian Federation. 

6. The Secretariat will also stand ready to receive information related to the analytical 
method(s) and equipment used by Russian experts to conduct their analysis, and to 
receive any data related to the collection, conservation, transport and, when 
applicable, analysis of the samples that will help establish the chain of custody of 
samples and activities related to them. 

H.E. Mr Alexander Vasilievich Shulgin 
Ambassador and Pe1manent Representative of the Russian Federation 
to the OPCW 
Andries Bickerweg 2 
2517 JP The Hague 

OPCW Johan de Wittlaan 32 2517 JR The Hague Netherlands fernando.arias@opcw.org 



7. In addition, the Secretariat is ready to receive samples from the Russian Federation, 
which the Secretariat will then dispatch to designated laboratories for analysis. The 
results of the analysis will be considered by the Secretariat and included in its report 
of the technical assistance visit to the Russian Federation. 

8. In this regard, the Secretariat will require written confirmation that it is authorised 
under domestic Russian law to be granted access to and receive the medical record, 
the samples and their analysis held by the Russian Federation. In addition, the 
Secretariat will need Mr. Navalny's written consent for such elements to be shared. 

9. The Russian Federation has requested the opportunity to discuss with the Secretariat 
the results of the laboratory analysis of the samples taken by the Secretariat from Mr. 
Navalny in the Federal Republic of Germany (Germany). The Secretariat has liaised 
with Germany on that matter. In response, the German Government has informed the 
Secretariat that it is not in a position to authorise it to share with the Russian 
Federation the full report of the technical assistance visit performed in Germany. It 
invited the Secretariat to refer to the version of the report that was circulated through 
the Secretariat. 

10. With regard to the privileges and immunities governing the technical assistance visit, 
Article VIII (48) provides that the Organisation shall enjoy in any place under the 
jurisdiction or control of a State Party such privileges and immunities as are necessary 
for the exercise of its functions. In line with Article VIII ( 48) and Article VIII (50) of 
the Convention, a written agreement such as the draft Memorandum of Understanding 
proposed by the Russian Federation in response to the draft ad hoe privilege and 
immunities agreement presented by the Secretariat, will enable the Secretariat to 
conduct the requested visit under Article VIII (38)(e). In addition, the Secretariat will 
share shortly its suggested edits to the draft Memorandum of Understanding. 

11. In relation to your question of who may sign an agreement on behalf of the Russian 
Federation, the choice of governmental official who will sign the agreement is a 
matter within the discretion of the Russian Federation. With respect to the temporal 
duration of the rights and obligations under this agreement, the privileges and 
immunities conferred to the members of the team would apply from the moment of 
arrival on your territory and continue after the visit has come to an end with respect to 
acts perfmmed in the exercise of the Secretariat's official functions. With respect to 
your query about the clause concerning COVID-19, the Secretariat would be grateful 
to receive information about the health and safety measures applicable to international 
civil servants and/or diplomats visiting the Russian Federation for official duties. 

12. I note that the present letter is a continuation of the discussion between the Secretariat 
and the Russian Federation pertaining to the letter that you handed to me during the 
sitting of the Executive Council on 6 October 2020. I also note that the Russian 
Federation has requested all previous communications on this matter to be circulated 
to States Parties. On this basis, and in continuation with the practice on this matter, I 
would therefore be most grateful if you could provide formal authorisation for your 
aide-memoire and the present letter to be shared with States Parties. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances ofmy hig est co~=:~,...~.,___. 

. .~ .~, --:·. 
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- The OPCW Technical Secretariat (TS) experts are welcome to Moscow for 

consultations and taking appropriate measures with regard to the "poisoning" of 

A.Navalny that is being declared by some States Parties on any day, starting from 

October 19, 2020. 

- During the visit of the OPCW TS experts we intend to examine and discuss 

with them the results of the analysis of the biomedical samples of A.Navalny 

collected by Russian specialists in the course of providing him the first aid in 

Omsk. 

- We also plan to discuss the results of the analysis of the biomedical 

samples of A.Navalny collected by the OPCW team at "Charite Hospital" in Berlin 

and then analyzed by the OPCW designated laboratories (TS Note S/1906/2020), 

which demonstrate that "A.Navalny was exposed to a toxic chemical acting as a 

cholinesterase inhibitor. The biomarkers of the cholinesterase inhibitor found in Mr 

Navalny's blood and urine samples have similar structural characteristics as the 

toxic chemicals belonging to schedules 1.A.14 and l .A.15 that were added to the 

Annex on Chemicals to the Convention during the 24th session of the Conference 

of the States Parties in November 2019. This cholinesterase inhibitor is not listed 

in the Annex on Chemicals to the Convention." 

- Upon completion of consultations in Moscow, the OPCW expe1is are 

invited to jointly study with Russian specialists of the remaining volumes of 

biomaterials collected from A.Navalny in Omsk at the OPCW-certified "62nd 

Laboratory of Chemical Analytical Control and Biotesting, Research Institute of 

Hygiene, Occupational Pathology and Human Ecology (RIHOPHE)" of the 

Federal Medical-Biological Agency of Russia (Saint-Petersburg) using the 

specialized equipment and reagents delivered to Russia by representatives of the 

OPCW TS ( similar to those used in two other designated OPCW laboratories for 

the analysis of samples previously taken from A.Navalny at the "Charite 

Hospital"). 
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- The results of consultations in Moscow are intended to assist the Russian 

law enforcement agencies in establishing any possible evidence of a crime ( corpus 

delicti) on the territory of the Russian Federation. 



OPCW 
Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

The Hague, 21 October 2020 
L/ODG/224369/20 

Excellency, 

Director-Genera I 

Refe1ring to your letter of 8 October concerning the activities undertaken by the Technical 
Secretariat of the OPCW (hereinafter, "the Secretariat") in response to the request for 

technical assistance by the Federal Republic of Germany under the provisions of Article VIII, 
paragraph 38(e) of the Chemical Weapons Convention (hereinafter, "the Convention") in 

regard to the case of Mr Alexei Navalny, please see the following pertinent points. 

Your letter reflects once again your intense professional activity and the special interest you 

always show for the work of the OPCW. 

You will recall that, on 6 October, during the 95th Session of the Executive Council, I 
provided to the States Parties a detailed account of the timelines and the activities undertaken 

by the Secretariat in response to the German request. 

Please find attached, for your perusal, a copy of my statement. 

Allow me to outline some important elements from this statement. 

From the beginning of September, I had personal contacts with the State Secretary of the 
Federal Foreign Office of Germany, Mr Miguel Berger. 

On 3 September, the State Secretary sent me a letter, informing me that German experts had 
found that a nerve agent from the so-called "Novichok group" could be determined as the 

source of this poisoning. 

On 4 September, Germany requested the Secretariat, through a note verbale, to come and 
collect its own samples directly from the victim. 

On 5 September, I dispatched a team of experts from the Secretariat to Germany to 

independently collect biomedical samples from Mr Navalny. 

H.E. Mr Alexander Vasilievich Shulgin 
Ambassador and Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation 
to the OPCW 
Andries Bickerweg 2 
251 7 JP The Hague 

0 PCW .lohan de Wittlaan 32 2517 JR The Hague Netherlands 
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Samples were collected on 6 September, taken to the OPCW Laboratory, and kept in OPCW 

custody, until further decision by the German Government. 

On 11 September, the Secretariat received a note verbale from the Permanent Representation 

of Germany to the OPCW, requesting it to proceed with the analysis of the samples collected 

by the OPCW team of experts under the formal procedure for a TAV, through the OPCW 

Designated Laboratories network. 

On 14 September, the German Government made public that it had requested our assistance 

under Article VIII subparagraph 38(e) of the Convention. 

On 5 October, the Secretariat shared its report of the Technical Assistance Visit with 

Germany. 

Additionally, on 16 October, I received a letter from Ambassador, Permanent Representative 

of Germany to the OPCW, Gudrun Linger, attached to this letter, related to the information 

Germany provided to the OPCW with regard to the analysis made by German expe1is. 

This letter confirms that, on 11 September and on 14 September, the Spokesperson of the 

German Ministry of Defense, Mr Collatz, made it clear that the Secretariat has never received 

any detailed analysis results from the German side. 

The sole elements given by Germany to the Secretariat were contained in the above 

mentioned letter from Mr Miguel Berger from 3 September, in which he informed me that 

Geiman expe1is had found that a nerve agent from the so-called "Novichok group" could be 

determined as the source of this poisoning. 

No other element of the analysis ordered by the German authorities in Germany were shared 

with the Secretariat. 

Moreover, I want to underline the obligation of the Secretariat to maintain the confidentiality 

of information related to deployments, would they be inspections, missions or technical 

assistance visits (hereinafter, "TAVs"). 

Accordingly, information related to such deployments is not shared with States Paiiies. 

Only certain operational details (security, visa requests, certain logistics, etc.) are necessary 

for the conduct of a deployment and are accordingly solely discussed with the visited State 

Party ahead of or during a deployment. 

This information is not shared with other States Paiiies, unless explicitly consented or 

requested by the visited State Party, in this case Germany. 

It is on this basis that the information provided to you by the Secretariat since the beginning 

of September was always con-ect and accurate, and also in line with the rules of 

confidentiality and the exclusive rights of Germany to decide what information it wishes to 

share with the States Paiiies. 



The Secretariat applied the same rules to its public statements shared with States Parties 

related to the TA V to Germany. 

All the activities unde1iaken by the Secretariat in relation to Germany were based on official 

written requests made by the German authorities in the form of letters or notes verbales. 

In this connection, you will also find attached the two notes verbales sent by Germany to the 
Secretariat with regard to the TA V, as authorised by the German authorities to be shared. 

Further to these elements, I cannot comment on anything related to bilateral issues between 

Germany and the Russian Federation. 

In relation to your comments about the report of the Fact-Finding Mission on the chemical 
weapon attack that took place in Douma on 7 April 2018, I can only reiterate the many 

statements of the Secretariat on this matter. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my high t consideration. -+-·;·, 
ernando Arias 
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Statement by the Director-General under sub-item 6(g) on the  
Navalny case 

 

Mr Chair, 

Excellencies, 

Distinguished delegates, 

I take the floor today, to inform you about all the actions undertaken by the 
OPCW Secretariat in relation to the alleged poisoning by a nerve agent of Mr 
Alexei Navalny, a Russian citizen.  

The Secretariat followed this issue with the utmost attention since it first 
surfaced in media from all around the world.  

From the outset, I ensured daily coordination with the top management of the 
Secretariat and contacts with a number of concerned States Parties.  

From the beginning of September, I had personal contacts with the State 
Secretary of the Federal Foreign Office of Germany, Mr Miguel Berger. 

On 3 September, the State Secretary sent me a letter, informing me that German 
experts had found that a nerve agent from the so-called “Novichok group” could 
be determined as the source of this poisoning.  

Mr Miguel Berger kept me informed about the considerations by the German 
government on the exact way of involving the OPCW, notably with regard to 
collecting samples directly from the victim.  

I assured State Secretary Berger of the Secretariat’s readiness to assist.  

We commented that, in order to perform proper analyses, samples would need 
to be taken by OPCW experts at the earliest.  

Otherwise, any possible toxic agents may degrade, rendering the exercise moot. 

On this basis, the Secretariat adopted specific preparatory measures to be ready 
to respond to any request from Germany. 

On 4 September, Germany requested the Secretariat, through a note verbale, to 
come and collect its own samples directly from the victim.  

This request was made under Article VIII, subpagraph 38(e) of the Chemical 
Weapons Convention.  

Under the provisions of this article, the Secretariat shall provide technical 
assistance and technical evaluation to States Parties in the implementation of the 
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provisions of the Convention, including the evaluation of scheduled and 
unscheduled chemicals. 

On 5 September, I dispatched a team of experts from the Secretariat to Germany 
to independently collect biomedical samples from Mr Navalny.  

Samples were collected on 6 September, taken to the OPCW Laboratory, and 
kept in OPCW custody, until further decision by the German Government. 

On 11 September, the Secretariat received a note verbale from the Permanent 
Representation of Germany to the OPCW, requesting it to proceed with the 
analysis of the samples collected by the OPCW team of experts under the 
formal procedure for a TAV, through the OPCW Designated Laboratories 
network. 

On 14 September, the German Government made public that it had requested 
our assistance under Article VIII subparagraph 38(e) of the Convention.  

Germany also made public that not only its experts, but also experts from 
France and Sweden, had established the use of a nerve agent belonging to the 
Novichok group. 

On 5 October, yesterday, the Secretariat shared its report of the Technical 
Assistance Visit with Germany.  

Samples analyses results were received from OPCW designated laboratories, 
confirming that traces of a nerve agent, from an unscheduled subgroup of the 
so-called Novichok family, was discovered in Mr Navalny’s blood samples.  

Germany has decided to make public the summary of this report, and it has been 
shared both with States Parties and on the OPCW website. 

During the entire period, the Secretariat was also in contact with the Permanent 
Representation of the Russian Federation to the OPCW.  

Its representatives informed the Secretariat that Russia had performed two tests 
on blood samples taken from Mr Navalny, in Omsk, and in Moscow, and that 
both analyses had shown no trace of any nerve agent. 

Moreover, on 1 October, last week, I received a letter from Ambassador 
Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the OPCW. 

In this letter, the basic contents of which have been shared with the public by 
the Russian Federation, the Ambassador requested the Secretariat to dispatch 
experts to the Russian Federation in order to cooperate with Russian experts to 
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study the results of analyses of Mr Navalny’s biological samples, to establish 
evidence of a possible crime on the territory of the Russian Federation. 

I responded the next day, on 2 October, through a letter to the Ambassador 
assuring him that the Secretariat stands ready to provide the requested 
assistance.  

I informed him that a team of experts could be deployed on short notice.  

I also sought from him clarifications as to under which provisions of the 
Chemical Weapons Convention or relevant OPCW Policy-Making Organ 
decisions, the Russian Federation would like this assistance to be delivered.  

Namely under Article VIII, subpagraph 38(e) of the Chemical Weapons 
Convention and under paragraph 20 of the decision adopted by the Conference 
of the States Parties on 27 June 2018.   

I thanked him for his letter, as it demonstrates the Russian Federation’s trust in 
the Secretariat’s independence and expertise to assist States Parties. 

Let me reiterate here that, under the Chemical Weapons Convention, poisoning 
of an individual through the use of a nerve agent is considered a use of chemical 
weapons.  

The results now obtained constitute a matter of grave concern. 

Despite the addition of several chemicals and families belonging to the category 
of nerve agents to the CWC schedules by the Conference of the States Parties 
only last year, we find ourselves confronted with another case of use of yet 
another chemical weapon, from the same category, currently not scheduled. 

It is therefore important for you, the States Parties to the Chemical Weapons 
Convention, to uphold the norm you have decided to universally adhere to more 
than a quarter of a century ago.  

I invite you to consider this matter with the utmost attention.  

Thank you./. 



• I 
Permanent Representation 
of the Federal Republic of Germany 
to the OPCW 

File No. CW 370.45/08-38 
Verbal Note No. 26 /2020 

Verbal Note 

The Permanent Representation of the Federal Republic of Germany to the OPCW pre­

sents its compliments to the Technical Secretariat of the Organisation for the Prohibition of 

Chemical Weapons and has the honour to transmit the enclosed letter of the Permanent Rep­

resentative, Ambassador Gudrun Lingner, to the attention of the Director General. 

The Permanent Representation of the Federal Republic of Germany to the Organisation 

for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons avails itself of this opportunity to renew to the Tech­

nical Secretariat of the Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons the assurances 

of its highest consideration. 

Technical Secretariat of the 
Organisation for the Prohibition of 
Chemical Weapons (OPCW) 
Office of the Director-General 
The Hague 

The Hague, 04 September 2020 



Permanent Representation 
of the Federal Republic of Germany 
to the OPCW 

NL-2517 EG Den Haag, Groot Hertoginnelaan 16-20 Tel +31 (0) 70 342 0616 

His Excellency Fernando Arias 
Director General of the 
OPCW 
Johan de Wittlaan 32 
2517 JR The Hague 
Netherlands 

Ambassador Gudrun Lingner 
Permanent Representative of the 
Federal Republic of Germany 
totheOPCW 

The Hague, 04 September 2020 

ARTICLE VIII 38 (E): EVALUATION OF CHEMICALS 

Your Excellency, 

My State Secretary of the Federal Foreign Office Miguel Berger wrote to you on 03 Sep­

tember to inform you about the findings regarding the poisoning of the Russian citizen Mr. 

Alexei Nawalny. 

In this context Germany would like to invite the Technical Secretariat to send a team of 

experts to Germany to provide technical assistance in accordance with Article VIII 38 (e). 

Therefore, Germany would like to invite the OPCW to send a team of technical experts to 

Berlin to collect samples from M. Alexei Nawalny. The samples' transmission to OPCW 

reference laboratories should only take place after the consent by Germany. 

I suggest that the Head of the OPCW Laboratory liaise directly with experts to arrange 

administrative and other relevant organizational matters to progress this urgent matter as 

quickly and as efficiently as possible. 

I would be most grateful for the Technical Secretariat's expertise and assistance on the 

matter. 

Yours sincerely, 

~ 
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Permanent Representation 
of the Federal Republic of Germany 
to the OPCW 

NL-2517 EG Den Haag, Groot Hertoginnelaan 16-20 Tel +31 (0) 70 342 0616 

His Excellency Fernando Arias 
Director General of the 
OPCW 
Johan de Wittlaan 32 
2517 JR The Hague 
Netherlands 

Ambassador Gudrun Lingner 
Permanent Representative of the 
Federal Republic of Germany 
totheOPCW 

The Hague, 11 September 2020 

ARTICLE VIII 38 (E): EVALUATION OF CHEMICALS 

Your Excellency, 

I'm referring to my letter dated 4 September 2020 inviting the Technical Secretariat to pro­

vide technical assistance in accordance with Article VIII 38 (e) in the case of Mr Alexei 

Nawalny. 

Reacting to this request the Technical Secretariat sent a team of experts to Germany to col­

lect samples from Mr Alexei Nawalny. I can now inform you that my government decided 

to request the OPCW to send the samples to OPCW reference laboratories for further anal­

ysis according to the rules of procedure of your organization. 

Let me reiterate that my government is most grateful for the OPCW assistance on this mat­

ter. 

Yours sincerely, 



 
 

 

    
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

The Hague, 16 October 2020 
 
 

Comment on letter from the Russian Permanent Representative to the Director Gen-

eral, dated 8 October 

 

Your Excellency, dear Director General 

 

I would like to thank you for sharing with all States Parties the letter from the Permanent 

Representative of the Russian Federation to the OPCW dated October 8, 2020 and make a 

few comments with regard to the content of this letter. 

 

Regarding the circumstances of the technical support requested by Germany from the OPCW 

in the Navalny case, I would like to draw the attention to the report provided by my govern-

ment, which was made available to all States Parties today, October 16th 2020, as requested 

(DCN D022141). 

 

In his above-mentioned letter, the Russian Permanent Representative refers to a statement 

made by a Spokesperson of the German Ministry of Defence, Mr. Collatz, on 9th September 

during a press conference. With regard to this statement, I would like to point out that Mr. 

Collatz himself has made it clear in two following press conferences on 11th and 14th Sep-

tember that the OPCW has never received any detailed analysis results from the German 

side.  

 

With regard to what my Russian colleague labels a “thorough talk with colleagues from the 

Permanent Representation of the Federal Republic of Germany to the OPCW” on 17th Sep-

tember, I would like to confirm that I indeed paid a courtesy visit to the Permanent Repre-

sentative of the Russian Federation on 17th September. During this courtesy call, Ambassa-

dor Shulgin and a colleague from the Russian delegation asked me many questions. Among 

NL-2517 EG Den Haag, Groot Hertoginnelaan 18-20  Tel +31 (0) 70 342 0616 

His Excellency Fernando Arias 
Director General of the 
OPCW 
Johan de Wittlaan 32 
2517 JR The Hague 
Netherlands 
 
 
 

Ambassador Gudrun Lingner 
Permanent Representative of the 

Federal Republic of Germany 
to the OPCW 



 
 

 

other things, they inquired at what moment Germany had decided to request the analysis of 

biomedical samples taken from Mr. Navalny. I answered this question truthfully: The deci-

sion to ask for an analysis by designated OPCW laboratories was taken in Berlin on 11th 

September. Following this decision, the appropriate procedures were initiated immediately.  

  

I hope that the provided clarifications are helpful and would kindly ask you to circulate this 

letter to all States Parties as an official document of the 95th session of the Executive Council 

as well as of the 25th session of the Conference of the States Parties. 

 

Thank you once again for your continuous support. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 















 

 

 

PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE  
OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION 

TO THE ORGANISATION FOR THE PROHIBITION 
OF CHEMICAL WEAPONS 

 

 

The Hague, “   8   ” October 2020 

 

Your Excellency, 

I am forced to address you on the matter directly related to the 

fundamental principles of the work of the OPCW Technical 

Secretariat (hereinafter, “the Secretariat”), which is, according to the 

provisions of the Chemical Weapons Convention (hereinafter, “the 

Convention”), meant to ensure the uninterrupted implementation by 

the States Parties of their obligations under the Convention.  

As is known, on 2 September this year, the Government of the 

Federal Republic of Germany, with reference to the Bundeswehr 

specialised laboratory, stated that “A. Navalny has been the victim of 

poisoning by a nerve agent from the Novichok group”.1  

On 3 September this year, the State Secretary of Germany’s 

Ministry of Foreign Affairs Mr Miguel Berger sent a letter addressed 

to you in which he asserted “the use of a military-grade nerve agent 

against Mr Navalny”. On that same day, the Secretariat issued a press 

release expressing its willingness to assist any interested State Party. 

 

H.E. MR FERNANDO ARIAS 
DIRECTOR-GENERAL  
OPCW TECHNICAL SECRETARIAT  
 
The Hague 

                                                 
1  Translator’s Note: It was not possible to verify the original English rendering of the quotes referenced in  

this note verbale. 
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 On 9 September this year, official representatives of German 

authorities—Deputy Spokesperson of the German Ministry of 

Defence A. Collatz and Deputy Spokesperson of the German 

Government M. Fitz—announced that “the OPCW has received the 

analysis results from the German side”. The management of the 

Secretariat, from which we requested clarifications that same day, 

contradicted the communication from German officials, stating that 

“nothing has been received from Germany yet: neither analysis results 

or any other documents other than the letter from the State Secretary 

of the German Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Mr M. Berger, dated 

3 September this year”. 

On 11 September this year, the Permanent Representation of 

Russia to the OPCW addressed the Secretariat with a request for a 

comment on the report in the German publication “Der Spiegel” that a 

delegation of OPCW experts had been at the Charité hospital on  

5 –  6 September, where it received samples from A. Navalny. In 

response, on the evening of that same day, a statement in your name 

was read out to us with the following content: “Traditionnellement le 

Secrétariat technique s’abstient de tous les commentaires au sujet de 

publications dans la presse. De même que le Secrétariat technique a 

les contacts avec les Russes il maintient les contacts avec les 

Allemands. Les Allemands continuent toujours de réfléchir à la 

meilleur façon d’engager le Secrétariat technique s’agissant de 

l’affaire Navalny” [“Traditionally, the Secretariat refrains from 

commenting on media publications.  Just as we are in contact with 

you, we are in contact with the Germans. The Germans are still 

deliberating on how best to involve the Secretariat regarding the 

Navalny Affair”].  

At the same time, in response to our questions to clarify 

whether or not the Secretariat had received anything pertinent to the 
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‘Navalny dossier’ from the German side, we were again informed: 

“nothing—neither the results of sample analyses, nor biomaterials—

have been received other than the letter from the State Secretary of the 

German Ministry of Foreign Affairs Mr M. Berger, dated 3 September 

this year”.  

On 14 September this year, the Government of the Federal 

Republic of Germany—together with information on the confirmation 

by laboratories in France and Sweden of the results obtained by the 

German military—reported that Berlin was sending a request to the 

Secretariat for technical assistance under paragraph 38(e) of Article 

VIII of the Convention. It was also underscored that “the OPCW has 

already collected the samples from A. Navalny and taken the 

necessary steps to examine them at designated laboratories”.  

On that same day, we again requested clarification from the 

Secretariat. The response was that there was nothing more to add to 

the statement of the German authorities. With reference to the OPCW 

policy on confidentiality, the Secretariat proposed that we bring all of 

our questions of interest directly to the German side.  

We made use of this advice from Secretariat management and 

inquired with our colleagues from the Permanent Representation of 

the Federal Republic of Germany to the OPCW as to their version of 

how the Government of Germany was arranging cooperation with the 

Secretariat.  

On 17 September this year, a thorough talk was held with 

colleagues from the Permanent Representation of the Federal Republic 

of Germany to the OPCW, which indicated that Berlin’s decision to 

involve the Secretariat under paragraph 38(e) of Article VIII of the 

Convention was taken on Friday evening of 11 September this year, 

after which on 12 – 13 September this year all documents were 

transferred to the OPCW in order to initiate the appropriate 
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procedures. On that same day, i.e., 17 September this year, the 

Secretariat issued another press release in which it confirmed that the 

German side had requested technical assistance under the 

aforementioned Article, and presented the collection of biomedical 

samples from A. Navalny by OPCW specialists for analysis at 

designated laboratories as a fait accompli. 

 Moreover, an official Note from the Permanent Representation 

of the Federal Republic of Germany to the OPCW sent to the 

Permanent Representation of Russia to the OPCW on 2 October this 

year indicates that “[o]n 4 September 2020 Germany requested the 

Technical Secretariat to provide technical assistance in accordance 

with Article VIII, paragraph 38(e)”, noting that “[t]he form of the 

technical assistance requested was the collection of samples from 

Mr Alexei Navalny for analysis by OPCW designated laboratories”.  

In the same Note from the Permanent Representation of the 

Federal Republic of Germany to the OPCW, it is cynically asserted 

that bilateral Russian-German cooperation on the situation concerning 

A. Navalny, upon which we consistently insist, allegedly took place in 

the meetings of the Ambassador of Russia in the Federal Republic of 

Germany with the State Secretary of the Germany Ministry of Foreign 

Affairs on 2 September this year, and the Ambassador of the Federal 

Republic of Germany in Russia with the First Deputy Minister of 

Foreign Affairs of Russia on 9 September this year, as well as 

telephone conversations between the Russian and German Ministers 

of Foreign Affairs on 15 September this year. This assertion is untrue. 

In the talks indicated above, two of which took place at our 

demanding request, the German side was given a clear request to 

provide the samples from A. Navalny and the results of their analyses 

in line with the official requests sent to Berlin by Russia’s Office of 

the Prosecutor General regarding the provision of legal assistance in 
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the investigation being carried out by Russian law enforcement into 

the alleged poisoning, the completion of which is an indispensable 

legislative condition for opening a criminal case on the matter. The 

German side pointedly declined to discuss this issue, having used the 

contacts listed above exclusively in order to reproduce the known 

accusations, threats, and ultimatums against Russia.  

In returning to the chronology of the contacts between Germany 

and the OPCW Secretariat, we would request that you please not deny 

us the courtesy of clarifying which version—that of the German side, 

or of the Secretariat—is true. 

Please do not take, distinguished Mr Director-General, our 

request as trivial pettifoggery. The questions we have raised are not 

frivolous. Our trust in the Secretariat was shaken when the 

orchestration of the preparation of the Fact-Finding Mission report on 

the incident that took place in Douma on 7 April 2018 came to light. 

As has become known, particularly at two Arria-formula meetings of 

the United Nations Security Council held on 24 January and 

28 September this year, the initial report was rewritten in 

complaisance with a group of countries that, on the night of 13 and 

14 April 2018, launched an unprovoked act of aggression against 

sovereign Syria.  

The case of the so-called poisoning of A. Navalny, which the 

Government of the Federal Republic of Germany is already portraying 

as a proven fact, and the infamous “international partnership against 

impunity” is presented as a story confirmed by OPCW professionals, 

could have extremely serious international implications. A message on 

the matter was conferred to the Ambassador of the Federal Republic 

of Germany in Moscow, as the Government of the Federal Republic of 

Germany declined to satisfy our requests for legal assistance and 
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instead pass the buck to the OPCW. Meanwhile, the Secretariat is 

sending us to the Germans, referring to their policy on confidentiality. 

Getting to the bottom of the issue of cooperation between the 

Secretariat and Germany on ‘the Navalny Affair’ and eliminating the 

obvious discrepancies and contradictions is a matter of the 

Secretariat’s honour; based on its work, there is still hope of our 

Organisation’s return to the practice of equitable and mutually 

respectful dialogue in the interests of all States Parties, and not just for 

a separate group of countries that attempts to replace international law 

in The Hague with their own rules. 

In looking forward to a response to the questions that have been 

asked, I would request you, distinguished Director-General, to 

circulate this letter as an official document of the Ninety-Fifth Session 

of the Executive Council as well as of the Twenty-Fifth Session of the 

Conference of the States Parties.  

 

[signature] 

 

Alexander SHULGIN 

 

 

 

 



OPCW 
Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

The Hague, 7 October 2020 

L/ODG/224297 /20 

Excellency, 

Director-General 

Following your letter of 6 October 2020 and the personal conversation we had this morning before 
the beginning of the Executive Council sitting, and on the basis of what you shared with me, I 
instructed my Chief of Cabinet, Mr. Sebastien Braha, to contact the Deputy Permanent 
Representative of the Russian Federation to the OPCW, M. Igor Vishnevetsky. 

My Chief of Cabinet subsequently informed your Deputy that we are preparing the deployment of 
a team of Secretariat's experts to the Russian Federation, and that he is ready to personally discuss 
all necessary details prior to this deployment. 

Please provide me, as soon as possible, with any information you deem relevant that will help us 
prepare and compose the team of experts, and to organise the visit properly. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest consideration. 

~ ~\~ \.-l \ t-A r JH ~ { ' .. 
ando~ 

H.E. Mr Alexander V asilievich Shulgin 
Ambassador and Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation 
to the OPCW 
Andries Bickerweg 2 
2517 JP The Hague 

0 PCW Johan de Wittlaan 32 2517 JR The Hague Netherlands 

/ 
/ ~". 

fernando.arias@opcw.org 





PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE 
OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION 

TO THE ORGANISATION FOR THE PROHIBITION 
OF CHEMICAL WEAPONS 

No. 54 

The Hague,_§_ October 2020 

Your Excellency, 

Thank you for your prompt response to my letter dated 1 October 2020 

regarding the deployment of experts from the Technical Secretariat of the 

Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons to the Russian 

Federation in order to cooperate with the relevant Russian experts in examining 

the results of the analyses of biomaterial collected from A. Navalny, and to 

identify any indications of a potential crime committed on the territory of the 

Russian Federation. 

With regard to your proposal concemmg the legal grounds for said 

cooperation, in light of the precedents that have already been set by Great 

Britain and the Federal Republic of Germany, we find it possible to arrange the 

meeting we have requested in line with paragraph 38(e) of Article VIII of the 

Chemical Weapons Convention (hereinafter, "the Convention"). 

At the same time, we do not have any objections to the publication of this 

letter, or my previous communication dated 1 October 2020 and your response 

thereto, in order to duly inform the States Parties to the Convention. 

Your Excellency, please accept the assurances of my highest considerations. 

H.E. FERNANDO ARIAS 
DIRECTOR-GENERAL 

OPCW TECHNICAL SECRETARIAT 
The Hague 

[signature] 

Alexander SHULGIN 



OPCW 
Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons 

The Hague, 2 October 2020 

L/ODG/224258/20 

Excellency, 

Director-General 

Thank you for your letter of 1 October. In this letter, you request the Technical Secretariat 
("Secretariat") of the Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons ("OPCW" or 
"Organisation") to dispatch experts to the Russian Federation in order to cooperate with Russian 
experts to study the results of analyses of Mr Alexey Navalny's biological samples to establish 
evidence of a possible crime on the territory of the Russian Federation. 

Please be assured that the Secretariat stands ready to provide the requested assistance. A team of 
experts can be deployed on short notice. Prior to doing so, I would like to seek from you 
clarification as to under which provisions of the Chemical Weapons Convention or relevant 
OPCW Policy-Making Organs decisions you would like this assistance to be delivered. Based on 
your letter, this could entail assistance under Article VIII, paragraph 38(e), of the Chemical 
Weapons Convention, and paragraph 20 of C-SS-4/DEC.3, adopted on 27 June 2018. 

As you know, Germany, France and Sweden have publicly reported that traces of a nerve agent 
were found in the samples they took from Mr Navalny. The Secretariat has not received any other 
information related in relation to these statements. At the same time, the Russian Federation's 
public statements refer to the fact that the biomedical samples taken by Russian experts from Mr 
Navalny did not reveal the presence of nerve agents. 

Separately, the Secretariat is expecting very soon results analysis of the samples it took, and will 
report its findings to Germany in due course. 

As the Russian Federation has already made public its request, I would be most grateful if you 
could provide formal authorisation for your letter to be shared with all States Parties. 

Thank you again for your letter, as it demonstrates the Russian Federation's trust in the 
Secretariat's independence and expertise to assist States Parties in their implementation of the 
Chemical Weapons Convention. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest consideration. 

H.E. Mr Alexander Vasilievich Shulgin 
Ambassador and Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation 
to the OPCW 
Andries Bickerweg 2 
2517 JP The Hague 

0 PCW Johan de Wittlaan 32 2517 JR The Hague Netherlands fernando.arias@opcw.org 



ITOCTOHIIHhIHIIPE~CTABHTE~b 
POCCIIHCKOH <l>E~EPAIJ;HH 

IIPH OPr AHH3AIJ;HH no 3AIIPEI.QEHHIO 
XHMiflIECKOro OPY)l{'IDI 

PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE 
OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION 

TO THE ORGANISATION FOR THE PROHIBITION 
OF CHEMICAL WEAPONS 

Excellency, 

(;)/ 
The Hague, " " October 2020 

In light of numerous appeals by the Russian Federation to the 

Federal Government of Germany to provide the Russian side with the 

information about the health condition of the Russian blogger 

Mr Alexey Navalny, including the official requests submitted by the 

Office of the Prosecutor General of the Russian Federation to the 

Federal Office of Justice of Germany, I would ask you to consider the 

option of dispatching experts of the Technical Secretariat of the 

OPCW to the Russian Federation for cooperation with relevant 

Russian experts with the purpose of studying the results of analyses of 

Mr Alexey Navalny's biological samples in order to establish 

evidence of a possible crime ( corpus delicti) on the territory of the 

Russian Federation. 

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest 

consideration. 

H.E. AMBASSADOR FERNANDO ARIAS 
DIRECTOR-GENERAL 

OF THE TECHNICAL SECRETARIAT 
OFTHEOPCW 

The Hague 

?7 Alexander SHULGIN 
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